## AT A GLANCE

•	Last date for receipt of Online Applications :		15 <sup>th</sup> March, 2011 upto 5.00 PM
•	Status of applications will be available on AIIMS website by	:	18 <sup>th</sup> April, 2011
•	Admit Card to be hosted at <u>www.aiimsexams.org</u> (through net only, not by post) by	:	16th May, 2011
•	Date of Entrance Examination	:	<b>1st June, 2011 (Wednesday)</b> (10.00 AM to 1.30 PM)
•	Expected date of declaration of result	:	15th July, 2011

The result will be displayed on the Notice Board of Examination Section, AIIMS and will also be available on the internet at <u>www.aiims.ac.in</u>, <u>www.aiims.edu</u> and also on <u>www.aiimsexams.org</u> Result of individual candidates will NOT be informed on telephone.

**Application Fee:** 

- Online: General / OBC Category: Rs.1000/- (SC/ST Category: Rs.800/-) + Transaction Charges as applicable. Payment through Computer generated Challan Form in any branch of State Bank of India. The candidates are required to bring AIIMS copy of Challan Form at the time of Entrance Examination on 1/6/2011 alongwith Admit Card and handover the same to the Invigilator failing which they will not be allowed to enter.
- Offline: Against Demand Draft (from Examination Section, AIIMS, New Delhi only)
  - By Hand: General/OBC Category Rs.1000/- (SC/ST Category Rs.800/-)
  - By Post: General/OBC Category Rs.1050/- (SC/ST Category Rs.850/-)

**NOTE:** The candidate is advised to read the Prospectus carefully before filling <sup>\*</sup> up the online Application Form and ensure that no column is left blank. In the event of rejection of the application form, no correspondence/request for reconsideration will be entertained. Please retain the copy of Registration Slip till the completion of Admission Process.

**\*** Read the instructions carefully while selecting/filling each column.

## CONTENTS

## SECTION

## PAGE NO.

0:1	Introduction	2
0:2	Aims & Objectives	2
1:0	Number of seats and Reservation	2
1:1	Criteria for Orthopaedic Physically Handicapped Candidates	3
1:2	Duration of Course	3
2:0	Eligibility	3
2:1	Procedure to apply	4
2:2	Authorities concerned with seats reserved for foreign candidates	5
3:0	Guidelines to fill Application form	5
3:1	Important points to note	7
3:2	Supreme Court rules regarding Anti Ragging	8
4:0	Competitive Entrance Examination	9
4:1	Minimum cut of marks	10
4:2	Procedure of Selection	10
4:3	Declaration of Results	11
4:4	Medical Examination	11
5:0	Admission procedure & date of joining	11
5:1	Fees & Expenses	12
5:2	Semesters	13
5:3	Attendance	13
5:4	Professional Examinations	13
5:5	Attempts	13
5:6	Weightage for internal marks	14
5:7	Compulsory Rotatory Internship Training	14
6:0	Appendix-I (State Codes)	14
6.1	Instructions of Photographs	15
	Proforma for Other Backward Classes (OBC) Certificate	16
	Form of SC/ST Certificate	17

## 0:1 INTRODUCTION

All India Institute of Medical Sciences was established by an Act of parliament of 1956 as an autonomous institution of national importance and its objectives and functions were defined. By virtue of this Act, the Institute awards its own medical degrees, diplomas and other academic distinctions. The degrees and diplomas awarded by the Institute under the All India Institute of Medical Sciences Act are recognised medical qualifications for the purpose of the Indian Medical Council Act and notwithstanding anything contained in the Medical Council Act, are deemed to be included in the first schedule of that Act, entitling the holders to the same privileges as those attached to the equivalent awards from other universities of India.

The Institute is a residential university in which the faculty members, staff and the students live on campus. There are 8 hostels for undergraduate students (6 for boys and 2 for girls) with a capacity to accommodate 850 students.

## 0:2 AIMS & OBJECTIVES

The Prime concern of the Institute is to develop patterns of teaching in undergraduate and postgraduate medical education in all the branches so as to demonstrate a high standard of medical education to all medical colleges and allied institutions in India. The other important objectives of the Institute are to bring together in one place educational facilities of the highest order for the training of personnel in all the important branches of health activities and to attain self-sufficiency in postgraduate medical education. The educational principles and practices being adopted here are those which are the best suited to the needs of the country. Adaptation of education to meet the problems of community health is a major preoccupation. To this effect the Institute has been trying to initiate a model educational programme which is undertaken in the Ballabgarh Community Development Block in collaboration with the Haryana Government. The Institute has also been able to initiate model educational programme in Community Medicine at the urban field practice area in Malviya Nagar, New Delhi. Emphasis is laid on the active learning process and on the cultivation of scholarly habits and scientific methods.

The first batch of undergraduate medical students was admitted to the Institute in the year 1956 and since then the Institute has been admitting 50 students every year (77 from 2008 session) to the M.B.B.S. Course. The number of students to this course is kept relatively small to ensure an adequate teacher student ratio. The undergraduate curriculum is constantly reviewed at the Faculty and Staff Council levels and the required changes in the curriculum are brought about in order to evolve a pattern which is the most suitable for the Indian needs and conditions.

The undergraduate medical students get sufficient impetus for higher studies as the Institute provides facilities for postgraduate degrees in almost all the branches of medical science. At present, the Institute is awarding post-graduate degrees in about 55 different specialities /super specialities.

## 1:0 NUMBER OF SEATS & RESERVATION

Each year **77** (seventy seven) seats are available for admission to the graduate medical course, leading to the award of the degree of M.B.B.S. by the All India Institute of Medical Sciences. Out of these, **11** (eleven) seats are reserved for the Scheduled Castes, **5** (five) seats are reserved for the Scheduled Tribes, **19** (nineteen) seats are reserved for Other Backward Classes and **5** (five) seats are reserved for General Category. For Indian Nationals, **3%** reservation for orthopaedic physically handicapped shall be provided on horizontal basis, in the seats available. If requisite number of suitable candidates are not available to fill the seats reserved for the Scheduled Castes, the same are filled out of the candidates belonging to the Scheduled Tribes and vice versa. In case suitable candidates are not available from the above two reserved categories, Orthopaedically handicapped and OBCs, the vacant seats will be filled by the candidates from the general category.

## 1:1 Criteria for Orthopaedic Physically Handicapped:

The candidate must posses a valid document certifying his/her physical disability conforming to judgement of Supreme Court of India i.e.

- i. With the approval of the Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, Govt. of India vide letter no. 18018/2/2009-ME (P-1) dated 17.02.2009 it has been decided that while providing reservation in admission to medical course in the first instance candidates with disability of lower limbs between 50% to 70% shall be considered and in case candidates are not available of such candidates in that category then the candidates with disability of lower limbs between 40% to 50% will also be considered for admission subject to the outcome in the Writ Petition (Civil) 184/2005-Dr. Kumar Sourav Vs. UOI & others pending in the Supreme Court of India.
- ii. The disability certificate should be produced by a duly constituted and authorized Medical Board of the State or Central Govt. Hospitals/Institutions.
- iii. The constitution of the Medical Board will be one consultant each from discipline of Orthopaedics, Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation and Surgery.

## **1:2 DURATION OF COURSE**

The Course of studies leading to the award of degree of Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery (M.B.B.S.) of the All India Institute of Medical Sciences shall last for a minimum of  $5\frac{1}{2}$  academic years including one year's compulsory internship.

## 2:0 ELIGIBILITY

#### A) For Indian Nationals:

- He/She should have attained or will attain the age of 17 (seventeen) years as Age : on the 31st of December of the year of admission. (Candidates born on or after 2nd January, 1995 are NOT eligible to apply.) He/She should have passed the 12<sup>th</sup> Class under the 10+2 Scheme/Senior Essential : School Certificate Examination or Intermediate Science (I.Sc.) or an qualifications equivalent examination of a recognised University/Board of any Indian State with ENGLISH, PHYSICS, CHEMISTRY and BIOLOGY. Minimum He/She should have obtained a minimum of 60% marks in the case of • General & OBC and 50% in case of SC/ST candidates in aggregate in aggregate ENGLISH, PHYSICS, CHEMISTRY and BIOLOGY.
- **Note :** All those candidates who have appeared or are appearing at the qualifying examination with English, Physics, Chemistry and Biology as main subject and expect to pass the examination with required percentage of marks are also eligible to apply and appear in the Competitive Entrance Examination. However, their candidature will be considered only if they provide documentary evidence of having passed the qualifying examination with the required subjects and percentage of marks on or before the date stipulated in para 6 of section 2:1 "Procedure to Apply" (page 4).

## **B)** For Foreign Nationals:

Foreign candidate nominated by the Government of India are required to have obtained a minimum of 50% marks in aggregate in the subjects of ENGLISH, PHYSICS, CHEMISTRY and BIOLOGY in their Intermediate Science or an equivalent examination to be eligible for admission to the M.B.B.S. Course. Foreign candidates are **NOT required to appear at the Competitive Entrance Examination**.

## **2:1 Procedure to Apply**

#### A) For Indian Nationals

- 1. A candidate seeking admission to the Entrance Examination is required to send his/her application in the prescribed format available online and offline with the prospectus.
- 2. The cost of Application Form includes the fee for entrance examination which is non-refundable and no correspondence in this regard will be entertained.
- 3. The candidate is required to go through the prospectus carefully and acquaint himself/herself with all requirements with regard to filling in of the application form online or offline.
- 4. **Online Registration:** After selecting the online registration read the instructions carefully and fill the details asked for, step by step, deposit the prescribed fee in the designate Bank through a Challan.

# 5. <u>Offline Application</u> : The candidate must fill in the application form in his/her own handwriting, clearly, legibly and in block letters. There should be no over-writing.

- 6. No document (copies of certificates, mark-sheets etc.) is required to be attached with the application. The candidates recommended for admission on the basis of results of the Entrance Examination, will be required to submit attested copies of certificates/mark-sheets in support of their claims of educational qualifications, marks, category, date of birth etc. to Asstt. Controller of Examinations, AIIMS by hand/speed post/regd. post within 7 (seven) days from the date of declaration of result of the Entrance Examination. Failure to do so may entail cancellation of candidature of the defaulting candidate, and offer of seat to the next candidate.
- 7. It will be the responsibility of the candidate to ensure that correct address in the Application Form is filled. The Institute will not be responsible for any loss in transit or for incorrect address given by the applicant in the Application Form.
- 8. Duly filled in Offline Application Form should reach Examination Section on or before 5.00 P.M. on 15<sup>th</sup> March, 2011. No application received thereafter shall be entertained on any ground whatsoever. The institute will not be responsible for any delay in receipt or loss of applications in postal transit.
- 9. No candidate should submit more than one application. However, if submission of another application becomes necessary for any reason, the words **"Second Application"** and Form No. of the earlier application should be written in red ink on top of the second application. Failure to do so may entail rejection of both applications.
- 10. **Status of Online Registration/Offline Application Forms Received:** Acknowledgement with regard to successful Online Registration will be forwarded to applicants email ID. However, in the case of Offline Applicants, the Form numbers of all the Offline Application Forms received will be available on AIIMS website <u>www.aiims.ac.in</u> and <u>www.aiims.edu</u> as well as <u>www.aiimsexams.org</u> after 18<sup>th</sup> April, 2011. Candidates are advised to check position regarding acknowledgement of their Online Registration/status of Offline Application Form on the website. If a candidate's Registration number/Application number is not available on the website, he/she should immediately write to the Asstt. Controller of Examinations, AIIMS, New Delhi 110 608 along with full particulars/**Proof of delivery** of the Offline Application Form in AIIMS.

After the last date & time is over, offline application sent through courier or by any other means will not be accepted, irrespective of the date of booking. Therefore, candidates are advised to submit their offline applications well in time, instead of waiting for the prescribed last date.

#### **B)** For Foreign Nationals:

- 1. The foreign nationals are not required to fill up the application form prescribed by All India Institute of Medical Sciences.
- 2. Foreign nationals who wish to apply for admission to MBBS Course against the five (05) seats reserved for foreign candidates should apply to the Government of India through their Diplomatic Channels and not to AIIMS. The nominations for foreign category are made by the Government of India. Candidates are, therefore, advised to correspond with the Ministry of External Affair, Government of India, New Delhi, and not with this Institute (see Section 2:2 for more details).

#### **2:2** AUTHORITIES CONCERNED WITH SEATS RESERVED FOR FOREIGN CANDIDATES

	Category	Authority to whom applications are to be sent
1.	Self Financing Foreign Candidates	Ministry of External Affairs, Student Cell, 527, Akbar Bhavan, New Delhi-110 021
2.	Foreign Candidates under General Cultural Scholarship Scheme	Indian Council for Cultural Relations, Azad Bhavan, Indraprastha Estate, New Delhi-110 002

The All India Institute of Medical Sciences and the Ministry of Health and Family Welfare neither entertain requests for supply of application forms for admission nor receive applications directly for nominations of foreign candidates.

## **3:0 GUIDELINES TO FILL APPLICATION FORM**

Candidate should himself/herself fill in the Application Form from item No. 1 onwards. Do not leave any column blank.

• **Full Name:** Write the name in BLOCK LETTERS as given in the records of the Secondary Education Board/University.

A N A N T A P A D M A N A B H	A K P A N I C K E R
-------------------------------	---------------------

Start writing from the first box itself. Do not write Miss/Mr. etc. Leave one box blank between two parts of the name.

- Father's & Mother's Name: Write your Father's & Mother's name in the appropriate fields.
- Centre Choice: Select 1st Choice of centre. Ensure that the choice is given in code and word as well (Check name of cities on page 9 of the prospectus). In case of discrepancy or non-availability of centre in the city as opted, centre as allotted by the AIIMS will be considered as final. No changes are permitted thereafter.

- Sex: If male, select "Male" if female select "Female".
- **Nationality:** Select the appropriate option Indian nationals should select "Indian". In case the nationality is other than Indian, select "**Others**" (ONLY INDIAN NATIONALS ARE ELIGIBLE TO APPLY FOR THIS ENTRANCE EXAMINATION).
- **Category:** Please select your category in numeric in the following manner :

(Tick [ ] in case of Offline App	plication)
If belong to	<b>Select</b>
SC	1
ST	2
<b>OBC</b> (Non-Creamy Layer)	3
OBC (Creamy Layer)	4
General	5

Category once declared in the Application form cannot be changed later on. The candidature of such OBC candidates who are covered under the 'Creamy Layer' will be considered only under the General Category.

- Orthopaedic Physically Handicapped: OPH candidates should select "Yes". Others should select "No" (Subject to fulfillment of the criteria as prescribed on page 3 under section 1:1 of the prospectus).
- **Date of birth:** Select the date of birth as recorded in Secondary School Leaving Certificate or equivalent examination.



- **State of Domicile:** Select the appropriate field (Code No. for the various States and Union Territories are given in Appendix-I on page 14 of the prospectus).
- Language of Question Paper: Candidates opting for question booklet in English should select "ENGLISH". Those opting for question booklet in Hindi should select "HINDI".
- **Details of earlier attempts at AIIMS MBBS Entrance Exams:** If you have appeared at MBBS Entrance Examination of AIIMS in the past, select "Yes" and write the year in which you last appeared. If you are appearing in MBBS Entrance Examination of AIIMS for the first time, select "No".
- **Details of qualifying examination (passed/appeared/due to appear):** Select the name of the examination which you have passed, or in which you have appeared/are due to appear, and which makes you educationally eligible to apply for this Entrance Examination (Details of eligibility requirements are given on page 3 of the Prospectus).
- Whether qualifying examination already passed: If you have already passed the 10+2 or any other specified examination which makes you eligible for this Entrance Examination, select "Already passed". If you have not yet passed such an examination, but are appearing/have already appeared and are awaiting result, select "Appeared" or "due to appear".
- **Percentage of Marks:** If you have selected "Already passed", then you must indicate the percentage of aggregate marks secured by you in English, Chemistry, Physics and Biology in 10+2 or equivalent examination in the column provided. This should be correct up to two decimal places. e.g.

% 6 0 9 9

- Name and Address: Write your name in the first line, full mailing address within the next lines write State and PIN Code. Write your name and full mailing address clearly & legibly, in capital letters and within the space provided because the facsimile of the name and address written by you in this column will be used for all purposes. AIIMS will not be responsible for any failure on your part to scrupulously follow these instructions.
- **Put full signature in the Box provided for this purpose:** The signature should be clear and strictly within the box provided (Online applicants must follow the "Important Instruction for applicants" while applying online). **Unsigned applications will be rejected**.
- **Photograph: i) Offline:** Affix firmly a recent coloured passport size Photograph with light background in the space provided for the purpose as per **"Instructions for photographs"** on page 15 of the prospectus. The photo should be pasted, NOT pinned or stapled. Use good quality adhesive to paste the photograph. Applications without photograph will be rejected.

ii) Online: Follow the "Important Instruction for Applicants" while applying online.

**IMPORTANT:** Dry the pasted photograph before putting the Offline Application in the envelope for mailing the Application to AIIMS.

- **Those applying Offline put Left Thumb impression** with blue colour stamp pad ink in the box provided for this purpose. Offline Application without left thumb impression will be rejected.
- Write your **telephone number and Fax No.** (with STD code), mobile number and e-mail address.
- If applying Offline, you must sign the "**Undertaking**" and get your signature attested by a Gazetted Officer with rubber stamp showing name and designation of attesting authority. Unsigned/un-attested application will be rejected. Permanent Address should be filled in by all the candidates.

## **3:1 IMPORTANT POINTS TO NOTE**

- 1. Incomplete application will be summarily rejected and no correspondence will be entertained in this regard.
- 2. Do not submit any document original or photocopy with the application; the Institute does not take any responsibility for return of the same.
- 3. Admission of candidates to entrance examination is provisional, subject to their being eligible for admission to MBBS course.
- 4. If ineligibility of a candidate is detected at any stage before or after examination/ declaration of result, his/her candidature/admission will be cancelled without any notice.
- 5. The centre indicated for the entrance examination by a candidate is only his/her option. Actual centre will be allotted by AIIMS and it will be final. No correspondence in this regard will be entertained. **The centre once allotted will not be changed in any circumstances.**
- 6. Any document/certificate submitted separately at later stage should bear the following title: "Application Form No...... for M.B.B.S. Entrance Examination, 2011".
- 7. In case any candidate is found to have furnished false information or certificate etc. or is found to have withheld or concealed any material information in his/her application, he/she will be debarred from admission.
- 8. If the Institute has to consider an examination of an Indian University or of a foreign university to be equivalent to the 12th class under 10+2 scheme/Intermediate Science examination, the candidates shall have to produce a certificate from the concerned Indian University/Association of the Indian Universities to the effect that the examination passed

by him/her is considered by them to be equivalent to the 12th class under 10+2 scheme/Intermediate.

- 9. Candidates should NOT bring pen/pencil to the Examination Hall as the same will be provided by AIIMS at the examination centre for writing/marking responses on (OMR) answer sheet.
- 10. The candidate should report at the examination centre at **8:30 a.m.**
- 11. Downloadable Admit cards of all the eligible candidates will be hosted on website www.aiimsexams.org as per the schedule mentioned under 'AT A GLANCE'. Candidates are advised to download their Admit Card from above website. It may please be noted that the Admit Cards will not be sent by post.
- 12. No candidate will be allowed to enter the Examination Hall without a valid Admit Card.

#### 13. No candidate will be allowed entry in the examination centre after 9:55 a.m.

14. No candidate should carry any textural material, printed or written, bits of papers or any other material except the Admit Card inside the examination hall. If a candidate is found to be copying/conversing with other candidate/to have in his/her possession papers, notes or books he/she will be disqualified from taking that examination and the next one or two such examinations according to the nature of offence.

## 15. Candidates should not bring cell phone, pager, calculator etc. to the examination hall; these are strictly prohibited.

- 16. Candidates must not obtain or give or attempt to obtain or give irregular assistance of any kind during the examination; this will entail expulsion and cancellation of candidature for the examination.
- 17. No candidate will be allowed to leave the examination hall before the end of  $3\frac{1}{2}$  hours.
- 18. Any attempt to note down questions during the examination or to take away pages from the Question Booklet will be viewed very seriously, and invite severe punishment.
- 19. Candidates should leave examination hall only after handing over answer sheet and question booklet to the Invigilator.
- 20. Change, if any, in the address should be promptly reported to the Institute. The candidates must also ensure that any communication sent at the earlier address is re-directed to him/her.
- 21. Any dispute in regard to any matter referred to herein will be subject to the jurisdiction of Delhi Courts alone.

#### **3:2** SUPREME COURT RULES REGARDING ANTI RAGGING

(1) As per direction of the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India, the Government has banned ragging completely in any form inside and outside the campus and the AIIMS authorities are determined not to allow any form of ragging. Whosoever directly or indirectly commits, participates in, abets or instigates ragging within or outside AIIMS shall have an FIR lodged against him/her and he/she will be suspended or rusticated from the institution and shall also be liable to be fined which may extend to Rs. 10,000/-. In case the applicant for admission is found to have indulged in ragging in the past or if it is noticed later that he/she has indulged in ragging, admission can be refused or he/she shall be expelled from the educational institution. The punishment may also include, suspension from attending the classes, withholding/ withdrawing fellowship/ scholarship and other financial benefits or withholding the result.

(2) The candidates as well as their parents, at the time of admission of the students to the Institute, will be required to furnish an undertaking in the form of an affidavit that the candidates will not indulge in any form of ragging.

## 4:0 COMPETITIVE ENTRANCE EXAMINATION

- 1. All candidates will be required to appear at the Competitive Entrance Examination, which will be conducted by the Institute on Wednesday the 1st June, 2011. The venue and time of the examination will be communicated to the candidates in the Admit Card. No candidate will be admitted to the examination unless he/she holds a valid "Admit Card" issued by the Institute.
- 2. The examination will be held at eleven cities listed below. Candidates should indicate their 1st choice of centre in the application form. The centre of examination once opted will not be changed and any request for such a change will not be entertained. Therefore, the candidate should indicate his/her choice of centre with due care and thought. In case of any discrepancy a non availability of centre in the city as opted, the centre as allotted by AIIMS will be considered as final. The centres are:

Name of City/Centre	Code
Ahmedabad	01
Bangaluru	02
Chandigarh	03
Chennai	04
Delhi	05
Guwahati	06
Hyderabad	07
Jammu	08
Kolkata	09
Lucknow	10
Mumbai	11

3. The Competitive Entrance Examination will be of 3<sup>1</sup>/<sub>2</sub> hours duration and will have one paper consisting of 200 objective type (multiple choice and reason-assertion type) questions from Physics, Chemistry, Biology and General Knowledge. The distribution of questions is as follows:

Subject	Number of Question
Physics	60
Chemistry	60
Biology (Botany and Zoology)	60
General Knowledge	20
Total	200

Incorrect responses will be given negative marks. Each correct response will get a score of 1 mark and each incorrect response will get a score of - 1/3 (minus-one-third). No credit will be given for the questions not answered. More than one response will be treated as wrong answer and negatively marked.

The general standard of the Competitive Entrance Examination will be that of 12th class under the 10+2 Scheme/Intermediate Science. No syllabus for the examination has been prescribed by the Institute.

#### 4. Language of Question Paper

Question paper will be provided either in English or in Hindi according to the choice of candidates. A candidate must select in the space provided in the application form whether he/she prefers to have the question paper in English or Hindi. This choice cannot be changed later at any stage.

#### 4:1 MINIMUM CUT OFF MARK IN THE MBBS ENTRANCE EXAMINATION

As per decision of the Governing body and Institute body in its meeting held on 26/11/09 with regard to cutoff marks in the MBBS Entrance Examination, the candidate belonging to General category will be required to have 50% minimum cutoff marks, those belonging to OBC category will be required to have 45% minimum cutoff marks and those belonging to SC/ST will have to ensure atleast 40% minimum marks in the MBBS Entrance Examination.

OPH candidates will be required to secure a minimum of 50% marks in case of General Category candidates, 45% for OBC & 40% for SC/ST candidates in the Entrance Examination as per latest direction of Ministry of Health & Family Welfare & the reservation etc. (Section-1 Sub para 1:1 can be seen).

#### 4:2 **PROCEDURE OF SELECTION**

Based on the result of the Competitive Entrance Examination, merit lists will be prepared as below:

(a) Common Merit list: Subject to the Govt. of India, DOPT. O.M.No. 36011/1/98. Estt. (Res), Dated 1<sup>st</sup> July 1998.

It is clarified that only such SC/ST/OBC candidates who are selected on the same standard as applied to general candidates shall not be adjusted against reserved vacancies. In other words, when a relaxed standard is applied in selecting an SC/ST/OBC candidates, for example in the age-limit, experience, qualification, permitted number of chances in written examination, extended zone of consideration larger than what is provided for General category candidates etc. the SC/ST/OBC candidates are to be counted against reserved vacancies. Such candidates would be deemed as unavailable for consideration against the unreserved vacancies. Therefore the reserved candidate will be considered on General Seat only if no relaxation of the eligibility level (i.e. % of marks) and at cut off level of marks in MBBS entrance examination is given.

- (b) Scheduled Caste candidates list
- (c) Scheduled Tribe candidates list
- (d) Other Backward Classes candidates list

Thirty seven (37) candidates from the common merit list, eleven (11) candidates from the merit list of Scheduled Caste category and five (5) candidates from the merit list of Scheduled Tribe and 19 (nineteen) candidates from the merit list of Other Backward Classes category will be admitted including 3% reservation for orthopaedic physically handicapped on horizontal basis in the seats available.

The reservation will be 7 1/2 % ST, 15% SC and 27% for OBC category.

In case eleven (11) candidates from the Scheduled Caste or five (5) candidates from the Scheduled Tribe categories and nineteen (19) candidates belonging to OBC are not available, then the number of candidates selected on the basis of merit for general seats shall be correspondingly increased so that the total number of candidates selected for the M.B.B.S. course remains seventy two (72). The remaining candidates will be kept on the waiting list in order of merit.

Inter se merit of two or more candidates in the same category obtaining equal marks in the competitive entrance examination will be determined in order of preference as under:

- (a) Candidates obtaining higher marks in **Biology** in the entrance examination.
- (b) Candidates obtaining higher marks in **Chemistry** in the entrance examination.
- (c) Candidates obtaining higher marks in **Physics** in the entrance examination.
- (d) Candidates **older** in age to be preferred.

#### 4:3 DECLARATION OF RESULTS

- 1. The list of candidates who qualify for admission to the M.B.B.S. course at the AIIMS, would be declared by 15th July, 2011. Roll numbers of candidates who qualify for admission will be displayed on notice board of Examination Section, AIIMS and will also be published in leading newspapers and intimation to that effect will also be sent to them by the Institute under Speed Post/Registered Post. The result will also be available on AIIMS website www.aiims.ac.in and www.aiims.edu The Institute will not be responsible for delay in receipt/non-receipt of intimation by the candidates.
- 2. The Institute will not intimate the individual unsuccessful candidates regarding the result of Entrance Test. No correspondence in this regard will be entertained. However, the mark of individual candidate will be available on AIIMS website <u>on</u> completion of the admission process.
- 3. Requests for re-evaluation/re-checking of answer sheet will not be entertained under any circumstances.

#### 4:4 MEDICAL EXAMINATION

The selected candidates will have to undergo medical examination by a Medical Board set up by the Institute, consisting of Faculty Members of the Institute. If, in the assessment of the Medical Board, a candidate is found medically unfit to be admitted to the course, then he/she will be rejected and not admitted and the decision of the Board shall be final. In that case, in his/her place next candidate in order of merit will be admitted.

## 5:0 ADMISSION PROCEDURE AND DATE OF JOINING

- 1. Admitted candidates must join classes on 1st August, 2011. The admission of the candidates, who fail to join the Course by the date stipulated in the letter of intimation, shall automatically be cancelled and such seats shall then be offered to the candidates on the waiting list in order of merit in the same category.
- 2. Normally no candidate, Indian or Foreign National, will be admitted to the MBBS course beyond 30<sup>th</sup> September of the year of the admission. No candidate except foreign nationals will be admitted under any circumstances beyond 30<sup>th</sup> September of the year of admission. The candidates who are admitted after 30<sup>th</sup> September will be eligible for appearing in the first professional examination only with the next batch of students.

- 3. Candidates selected for admission to the MBBS course at the AIIMS after verification of their eligibility and offered admission should bring the following original certificates/ testimonials/documents at the time of admission:
  - i. Certificate of having passed the 10+2 or equivalent examinations, showing the subject offered by him/her in the examination.
  - ii. Certificate from the Board from which he/she passed the High School/Higher Secondary Examination, showing his/her date of birth.
  - iii. Certificate/Mark sheet from the Board from which he/she passed the 10+2 or equivalent examination showing that he/she has secured 60% or more marks (50% in case of SC/ST/Orthopaedic Physically handicapped candidates) in aggregate in English, Physics, Chemistry and Biology.
  - iv. Migration Certificate from the University/Board last attended by him/her.
  - v. a) SC/ST Certificate issued by the competent authority. Community should be clearly mentioned in the certificate.
    - b) OBC Certificate issued by the competent authority. The sub-caste should tally with the Central list of OBC. OBC candidates should not belong to Creamy layer. OBC certificate must be in the prescribed format.
    - c) Certificate from prescribed authority showing that he/she belongs to Orthopaedic Physically Handicapped Category.

**Note.** Applicable only to candidate belonging to Scheduled Caste/Tribe/OBC/OPH Category.

#### 5:1 FEES AND EXPENSES

#### A) For Indian Nationals:

The dues are to be paid in cash immediately, after you have been declared medically fit in the Medical Board of the Institute as per details given below :

Total	Rs. 1628.00	+	Total	Rs. 4228.00
6.		+	Hostel Security (Refundable)	Rs.1000.00
5. Students Union Fee	Rs. 63.00	+	Mess Security (Refundable)	Rs. 500.00
4. Laboratory Fee	Rs. 90.00	+	Electricity Charges	Rs. 198.00
3. Tuition Fee	Rs. 1350.00	+	Pot Fund	Rs. 1320.00
2. Caution Money	Rs. 100.00	+	Gymkhana Fee	Rs. 220.00
1. Registration Fee	Rs. 25.00	+	Hostel Rent	Rs. 990.00

#### (ABOVE FEES ARE SUBJECT TO REVISION)

Please Note that Cheques, Drafts, Money Orders etc will not be accepted in any case, Extension of date for payment of dues will not be allowed in any case.

## **B)** For Foreign Nationals:

A tuition fees of US \$ 75,000/- (divided in 3 equal installments for pre-clinical phase, para clinical phase and clinical phase of MBBS course) will be charged from the foreign national students admitted to MBBS course at AIIMS.

## 5:2 SEMESTERS

First Semester	1st August to 13th December
Second Semester	1st January to 15th July

M.B.B.S. students in the pre-clinical course shall avail of full winter vacation from 14<sup>th</sup> December to 31st December and summer vacation from 16th July to 15th August. In para-clinical and clinical courses, students shall avail of only one half of the vacation. i.e. halves of winter vacation from 14th December to 31st December and summer vacation from 16th May to 15th July.

## 5:3 ATTENDANCE

The attendance to MBBS course is compulsory. The MBBS student must obtain 75% attendance in aggregate with a minimum of 65% in each of the subjects before they are permitted in the 1st, 2nd and Final Professional examinations. Those students who obtain 70% attendance will be permitted in the professional examinations with the permission of Dean/Director. Such cases will be considered on merit basis. The students who obtain the permission to participate in the various Inter-Medical College/Inter Institutional festivals outside the AIIMS and those who participate/organize the PULSE programme at AIIMS will be considered for some relaxation in the attendance. (Authority Academic Committee meeting held on 17/6/2005 and approved by Governing Body on 5/7/2005)

Any student with attendance less than 70% in aggregate and 65% in each of the subject will NOT BE PERMITTED IN THE 1st, 2nd & final Professional examination.

## 5:4 **PROFESSIONAL EXAMINATIONS**

The Schedule of semester examinations in the first professional MBBS is as under:-

DETAILS OF THE SEMESTER EXAMINATIONS	MONTH & APPROX. DATE(S) OF START OF THE EXAMINATIONS
Ist Mid-Semester examination	October (examination is generally started by 10th of the month and it takes about 8-10 days time)
Ist End-Semester examination	December (it is started in the first week of December to be finished by 13th December and it usually takes about 8-10 days time)
IInd Mid-Semester examination	March (it is started by 10th of the month and it usually takes about 8-10 days time)

## 5:5 ATTEMPTS

If a student does not qualify/pass MBBS 1st Professional examination in 3 attempts (regular & supplementary) and 2nd Professional Examination/3rd Professional Examination in 4 attempts i.e. 2 regular plus 2 supplementary examinations (for all subjects) for each phase then the name of such students will be struck off from the rolls of the Institute.

## 5:6 WEIGHTAGE FOR INTERNAL MARKS

1st Professional students will be allowed to take the supplementary examination only if they have 40% marks in their internal assessment in each subject and independently in theory and practical component. Once they are found eligible for the supplementary exam, 25% of weightage will be carried forward from internal assessment and 75% will be allotted to the supplementary exam. In case internal assessment is less than 40% the student will not be allowed to sit in the supplementary exam. and will be made to repeat the 1st year but this non-appearance will not be counted as an attempt. The same process will be applicable when they appear for the exam in the next year.

## **5:7 COMPULSORY ROTATORY INTERNSHIP TRAINING**

After passing the Final M.B.B.S. examination, all the candidates will be required to do compulsory internship for a period of one calendar year (12 months) in the hospital and rural health centres recognised by the AIIMS. During the internship period, the interns are allowed a total of 15 days leave in full term of one year. The degree of M.B.B.S. shall be awarded to them after satisfactory completion of one year's internship.

All admitted candidates have to reside in the Institute's hostels, if offered accommodation.

Code	States & Union Territory
01	Andhra Pradesh
02	Arunachal Pradesh
03	Assam
04	Bihar
05	Chhattisgarh
06	Delhi
07	Gujarat
08	Goa
09	Haryana
10	Himachal Pradesh
11	Jammu & Kashmir
12	Jharkhand
13	Karnataka
14	Kerala
15	Madhya Pradesh
16	Maharashtra
17	Manipur
18	Meghalaya

Code
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
-

## 6:0 APPENDIX-I

## 6:1 INSTRUCTIONS FOR PHOTOGRAPHS

## I OFFLINE APPLICATIONS:

- 1. One (1) recent colour passport size photograph with light background is required. Black & white/ Polaroid photographs are **NOT** acceptable.
- 2. Photograph MUST be snapped on or after 01-02-2011.
- 3. Photograph must be taken with name of candidate (as in application) and date of taking photograph.

**Example :** 

## **IMPORTANT :**

- (i) The photograph must be snapped with a placard while the placard is being held by the candidate indicating name of candidate and date of taking photograph. In case name and date are written the on photograph after taking it. the application will be rejected.
- (ii) The name and date on the photograph must be clear and legible.
- 4. Photograph should NOT have cap or goggles. Spectacles are allowed.
- 5. Photograph should be pasted (NOT stapled) on the Application Form. Use good quality adhesive to paste the photograph.
- 6. Photograph on the Application Form should be unattested.
- 7. Application not complying with these instructions or with unclear photographs will be rejected.
- 8. Keep a few identical photographs in reserve for use at the time of Entrance Examination/Admission.

## II ONLINE APPLICATIONS:

- **NOTE:** Candidates must upload photograph and signature to correct specified fields. Do not make any mistake in uploading signature and photograph.
  - 1. Candidate must have in softcopy/digital of passport size photograph and save it as "Candidate Photograph.jpg" provided by photographer. Keep size of photograph minimum, as the maximum size limit is <u>500 KB</u>.
  - Candidate put his/her signature in an area of 2" × 1" on paper with a black ball point pen. Scan that paper. Cut Signature area of 2" × 1" and save it as "Candidate Signature.jpg". Keep size of Signature minimum, as the maximum size limit is <u>300 KB</u>.
  - 3. To upload "Candidate Photograph.jpg" Click "Browse" Button right to the photograph field. Select the Scanned "Candidate Photograph.jpg" file from saved location and click "Open" Button.
  - 4. To upload "Candidate Signature.jpg" Click "Browse" Button right to the signature field. Select the Scanned "Candidate Signature.jpg" file from saved location and click "Open" Button.
  - 5. Click **Submit** button. Registration Slip page appears.



## PROFORMA FOR OTHER BACKWARD CLASS (OBC) CERTIFICATE

## (Certificate to be Produced by other Backward Classes applying for Admission to Central Educational Institutions (Ceis), Under The Government of India)

This is to certify that Shri/Smt./KumSo							Son/Daughter			
of	Shri/Smt.	of	Village/Town				District/Division			
	in the		State belon	gs to the	e		Community			
which is recognized as a backward class under:										
(i)	Resolution No. 12011/68/93-BCC(C) dated 10/09/93 published in the Gazette of India Extraordinary									
. /	part I Section I No. 186 dated 13/09/93.									
(ii)	Resolution No. 12011/9/94-BCC dated 19/10/94-BCC dated 19/10/94 published in the Gazette of									
	India Extraordinary part I Section I No. 163 dated 20/10/94.									
(iii)	Resolution No. 12011/7/95-BCC dated 24/05/95 published in the Gazette of India Extraordinary									
	part I Section I dated 25/05/95.									
(iv)	Resolution No. 12011/96/9									
(v)	Resolution No. 12011/44/9			published	l in the C	Gazette of Ind	dia Extraordinary			
	part I Section I No. 210 dat									
(vi)	Resolution No. 12011/13/9									
(vii)	Resolution No. 12011/99/9									
(viii)	Resolution No. 12011/68/98-BCC dated 27/10/99.									
(ix)	Resolution No. 12011/88/99-BCC dated 06/12/99 published in the Gazette of India Extraordinary									
$\langle \rangle$	Part I Section I No. 270 dated 06/12/99.									
(x)	Resolution No. 12011/36/99-BCC dated 04/04/2000 published in the Gazette of India Extraordinary									
(11)	Part I Section I No. 71 dated 04/04/2000.									
(xi)	Resolution No. 12011/44/99-BCC dated 21/09/2000 published in the Gazette of India Extraordinary Part I Section 1 No. 210 dated 21/09/2000.									
(xii)				)1						
(xiii)	Resolution No. 12015/09/2000-BCC dated 06/09/2001. Resolution No. 12011/01/2001-BCC dated 19/06/2003.									
(xiv)	Resolution No. 12011/04/2002-BCC dated 13/01/2004.									
(xv)	Resolution No. 12011/09/2004-BCC dated 16/01/2006 published in the Gazette of India									
(11))	Extraordinary Part I Section I No. 210 dated 16/01/2006.									
Shri/S	mt./Kum.		and/or	his	family	ordinarily	reside(s) in			

the\_\_\_\_\_\_District/Division of \_\_\_\_\_\_State.

This is also to certify that he/she does not belong to the persons/sections (Creamy Layer) mentioned in Column 3 of the Scheduled to the Government of India. Department of Personnel & Training O.M. No. 36012/22/93-Estt. (SCT) dated 08/09/93 which is modified vide OM No. 36033/3/2004 Estt. (Res.) dated 09/03/2004 or the latest notification of the Government of India.

Dated :

District Magistrate/Competent Authority

Seal

#### NOTE:

- (a) The Term Ordinarily used here will have the same meaning as in Section 20 of the Representation of the People Act, 1950.
- (b) The authorities competent to issue Caste Certificates are indicated below:
  - District Magistrate/Additional Magistrate/Collector/Deputy Commissioner/Additional Deputy Commissioner/Deputy Collector/Ist Class Stipendiary Magistrate/Sub-Divisional Magistrate/Taluka Magistrate/Executive Magistrate/Extra Assistant Commissioner (not below the rank of Ist Class Stipendiary Magistate.)
  - (ii) Chief Presidency Magistrate/Additional Chief Presidency Magistrate/Presidency Magistrate.
  - (iii) Revenue Officer not below the rank of Tehsildar.
  - (iv) Sub-Divisional Officer of the area where the candidate and/or his family resides.

## FORM OF SC/ST CERTIFICATE PRESCRIBED

Form of certificate as prescribed in M.H.A., O.M., No. 42/21/49-N.G.S. dated the 28.1.1952, as revised in Dept. of Per- & A.R. letter No. 36012/6/76-Est. (S.CT), dated the 29.10.1977, to be produced by candidate belonging to a Scheduled Caste or a Scheduled Tribe in support of his/her claim.

#### **CASTE CERTIFICATE**

This	is	to	certify	that	Shri	/Smt./Kum.*			son/da	ugh	ter*
of			-	of	vi	llage/town*		in	district/D	ivis	ion*
				. of	the	State/Union	Territory*		belongs	to	the
Caste/Tribe which is recognised as a Scheduled Caste/Scheduled Tribe* under :											

- The Constitution (Scheduled Caste) Order, 1950
- The Constitution (Scheduled Tribe) Order, 1950
- The Constitution (Scheduled Caste) (Union Territories) Order, 1951
- The Constitution (Scheduled Tribe) (Union Territories) Order, 1951

% 1. (as amended by the Scheduled Caste and Scheduled Tribes Lists (Modification) Order, 1956, the Bombay Re-organization Act, 1960, the Punjab Re-organization Act, 1966, the State of Himachal Pradesh Act, 1970 the North Eastern Areas (Re-organization) Act, 1971 and the Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes Orders, (Amendment) Act, 1976).

- The Constitution (Jammu and Kashmir) Scheduled Caste Order, 1956.
- The Constitution (Andaman and Nicobar Islands) Scheduled Tribes Order, 1959.
- The Constitution (Dadra and Nagar Haveli) Scheduled Caste Order, 1962.
- The Constitution (Dadra and Nagar Haveli) Scheduled Tribes Order, 1962.
- The Constitution (Pondichery) Scheduled Caste Order, 1964
- The Constitution (Uttar Pradesh) (Scheduled Tribes) Order, 1967
- The Constitution (Goa, Daman & Diu) Scheduled Caste Order, 1968.
- The Constitution (Goa, Daman & Diu) Scheduled Tribes Order, 1968.
- The Constitution (Nagaland) Scheduled Tribes Order, 1970.
- The Constitution (Sikkim) Scheduled Caste Order, 1978.
- The Constitution (Sikkim) Scheduled Tribes Order, 1978.

% 2. Applicable in the case of Scheduled Caste/Schedule Tribe persons who have migrated from one State/ Union Territory Administration:

Signature.....

Place .....

State/Union Territory

\*\*Designation.....

Date .....

(With seal of Office)

\* Please delete the words which are not applicable.

• Please quote specific Presidential Order.

% Delete the paragraph which is not applicable.

\*\* Should be signed by the Authorities empowered to issue Scheduled Caste/Scheduled Tribe certificates as specified above.

## Note:-

The information will appear in the website strictly as per time schedule laid down in the prospects. Telephonic queries/written requests prior to the scheduled date mentioned in the prospectus regarding receipt of application, acceptance, hosting of admit cards etc. will not be entertained.

For enquiries relating to Entrance Examination please contact:

Assistant Controller (Exams) Examination Section All India Institute of Medical Sciences (AIIMS) Ansari Nagar, New Delhi - 110 608

Tel: 26589900, 26588500 Extn. 4971, 6421, 4499, 6422

Fax: 011 2658 8789